
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE  
ROWAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

January 17, 2006 – 7:00 PM 
J. NEWTON COHEN, SR. ROOM, ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

 
Present:  Arnold S. Chamberlain, Chairman 

Jim Sides, Vice-Chairman 
Steve Blount, Member 

Frank Tadlock, Member 
Chad Mitchell, Member  

 
Interim County Manager William Cowan, Clerk to the Board Carolyn Athey, 
County Attorney Jay Dees and Finance Director Leslie Heidrick were present. 

 
Chairman Chamberlain called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain recognized Commissioner Tadlock, who had been 
recovering from surgery.  A round of applause followed the recognition. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock expressed his appreciation for the support and prayers 
on his behalf during the past several weeks.  Commissioner Tadlock recalled that 
he had attended the Commission meeting on December 5, 2005 and that several 
days later on December 9, 2005 he was undergoing surgery for a brain tumor.  
Commissioner Tadlock said he believed in prayer and he was optimistic that his 
health would continue to improve.  Commissioner Tadlock said he would always 
be grateful for the support he had received. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell provided the Invocation and also led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
 
 
 
 



ADDITIONS/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
• Commissioner Blount moved to pull Item #10 from the agenda due to Staff 

continuing to work on the issue.  The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Sides and passed unanimously. 

 
• County Attorney Jay Dees requested to add an issue involving the Tax 

Collector and foreclosures.  Mr. Dees provided the Board with a copy of a 
Resolution pertaining to the matter.   

 
Commissioner Tadlock moved, Commissioner Blount seconded and the 
vote to add the issue involving the Tax Collector to the agenda passed 
unanimously.  Chairman Chamberlain added the issue as agenda Item 
#16a. 

 
• Commissioner Blount made a motion to move Item #5 regarding the 

contract for county management services from the Open Agenda to 
Executive Session under the personnel exception.  The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Tadlock and passed unanimously. 

 
• Interim County Manager William Cowan requested to add a Resolution of 

support to the Consent Agenda for Rowan Regional Medical Center 
concerning a certificate of need for an additional operating room.   

 
Commissioner Mitchell moved, Commissioner Blount seconded and the 
vote to add the Resolution to the Consent Agenda passed unanimously.  
The issue was added as Consent Agenda Item F.  

 
• Mr. Cowan provided the Board with a copy of the proposed rewording for 

the Solid Waste Ordinance amendment.  Chairman Chamberlain said the 
Board would accept this information for consideration for agenda Item 
#12. 

 
• Mr. Cowan clarified that Consent Agenda Item D included a resolution 

authorizing the purchase of equipment.  Mr. Cowan said the issue was 
time sensitive. 

 
• Commissioner Blount mentioned correspondence the Board had received 

from the NCACC regarding a workshop on February 23, 2006, to assist 
boards in obtaining better working relationships.  Chairman Chamberlain 
agreed the workshop was a good idea for those who might be available. 

 
• Commissioner Sides referred to Item D of the Consent Agenda and said 

he felt it important for the citizens to understand that a bill had been 
passed, requiring the county to purchase additional voting equipment.  
Commissioner Sides said a grant would prevent the county from having to 

 2



take funds from its surplus or from raising taxes to cover the purchase of 
the equipment. 

 
Commissioner Sides also referred to Item E for the purchase and 
installation of fencing at Dunn’s Mountain Park.  Commissioner Sides said 
donations were made for the project and request was for Board approval 
to spend the funds. 

 
CONSIDERATION OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 
Commissioner Mitchell moved to approve the Consent Agenda with the 
requested changes as noted above.  The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Sides and passed unanimously. 
 
The Consent Agenda consisted of the following items: 

A. Approval of the Minutes for January 3, 2006 
B. Request for Addition of Adrian Road and Faye Road to State Secondary 

Road System for Maintenance 
C. Set Public Hearing for February 6, 2006 to Consider CUP 21-02 
D. Approval to Apply for Grant Funds to Be Used for the Purchase of Voting 

Equipment 
E. Approval of Purchase & Installation of Fencing for Dunn’s Mountain Park 

 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR PROPOSED INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
REVENUE BONDS FOR DDSM PROPERTIES, LLC 
Dyke Messinger, Manager of DDSM Properties and President of Power Curbers 
came forward to answer any questions the Board might have.   
 
Chairman Chamberlain opened the public hearing to entertain citizen input 
regarding the proposed industrial development revenue bonds for DDSM 
Properties, LLC.  With no one wishing to address the Board, Chairman 
Chamberlain closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Sides recalled his time on the Board 25 years ago and said one of 
the first issues he had dealt with as a Commissioner was a similar bond, which 
he had voted against.  Commissioner Sides said many things had changed in 25 
years and he continued by commending the industrial bond program.   
 
Commissioner Sides moved, Commissioner Blount seconded and the vote to 
approve the Resolution for DDSM Properties, LLC passed unanimously.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR PROPOSED INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
REVENUE BONDS FOR TAYLOR CLAY PRODUCTS, INC 
Charles Taylor, President of Taylor Clay Products came forward to address any 
questions the Board might have. 
 

 3



Chairman Chamberlain opened the public hearing to entertain citizen input 
pertaining to the proposed industrial development revenue bonds for Taylor Clay 
Products, Inc.  With no one wishing to address the Board, Chairman 
Chamberlain closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Blount moved, Commissioner Sides seconded and the vote to 
approve the request as presented passed unanimously.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE PROPOSED ROAD NAME OF HUCKLEBERRY 
LANE 
Fredda Greer of the Planning Department presented the majority petition 
regarding Huckleberry Lane.  Ms. Greer said the road had been identified by ASI 
as meeting the criteria for naming.   
 
Ms. Greer said a petition was received requesting the road name of Huckleberry 
Lane and that Staff recommended approval.   
 
Chairman Chamberlain opened the public hearing to entertain citizen input 
regarding the proposed road name and with no one wishing to address the 
Board, Chairman Chamberlain closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Blount moved, Commissioner Tadlock seconded and the vote to 
approve the road name of Huckleberry Lane passed unanimously. 
 
CONTRACT FOR COUNTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
The contract for County Management Services was moved to Executive Session.   
 
Before moving to the next agenda item, Commissioner Blount commented that a 
recent newspaper article had led people to believe the County was in the process 
of hiring a permanent manager.  Commissioner Blount said the process to be 
considered for the current meeting was a contract for a one-year period, with a 3-
month termination clause.  Commissioner Blount said the Board still intended to 
hire a permanent manager. 
 
REQUEST TO TRANSFER FUNDS FROM CURRENT EXPENSE TO CAPITAL 
OUTLAY FOR EAST ELEMENTARY 
Tara Trexler from the Rowan-Salisbury School System (RSSS) explained that 
the low bid for the eastern Rowan elementary school had exceeded the budget.  
Ms. Trexler said the school system was requesting the Board’s approval to 
transfer $610,400 from the RSSS current budget to the RSSS capital outlay fund.   
 
Commissioner Blount moved, Commissioner Sides seconded and the vote to 
approve the transfer of the funds passed unanimously.  
 
 
 

 4



EAST ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PROPERTY ACQUISITION 
Jim Christy from the Rowan-Salisbury School System and Ed Watson of 
Construction Control Corporation presented the request for the school property 
acquisition. 
 
Mr. Christy explained that negotiations had been ongoing for the purchase of 
land for the East Elementary School site and he requested Board approval for 
the purchase price of $200,000 for a 25.1-acre portion of the property. 
 
Commissioner Blount moved, Commissioner Tadlock seconded and the vote to 
approve the request as presented passed unanimously. 
 
CONTINGENCY REDUCTION REQUEST FOR NORTH ROWAN HIGH 
SCHOOL 
Jim Christy from the Rowan-Salisbury School System and Ed Watson of 
Construction Control Corporation presented the request for the contingency 
reduction for North Rowan High School. 
 
Mr. Watson highlighted the memo in the agenda packet, which outlined 2 items 
of additional work that would require change orders and a reduction in the current 
contingency. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell asked if the remaining contingency of $29,245 would be 
enough to cover the rest of the project.  Mr. Watson responded that it should be 
but said he was unsure when dealing with renovations. 
 
In response to a query from Commissioner Sides, Mr. Watson agreed that 
someone should have realized the additional work beforehand.   
 
Commissioner Blount moved to approve the request as presented.  The motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Tadlock.   
 
Chairman Chamberlain stressed that he hoped the Board would not “see 
anymore that are like this.” 
 
Upon being put to a vote, the motion on the floor passed unanimously. 
 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF CONTINGENCY FUNDS FOR SALISBURY HIGH 
SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT 
Jim Christy from the Rowan-Salisbury School System and Ed Watson of 
Construction Control Corporation presented the request regarding the Salisbury 
High School Contingency Fund reduction.   
 
Mr. Watson referred to the memo in the agenda packets and said he took 
responsibility that those items had not been handled. 
 

 5



Commissioner Sides commented that the County had hired a professional and 
that there were times the professionals must absorb some of the costs. 
 
Mr. Watson said he did not disagree with Commissioner Sides and he asked for 
the Board’s understanding in that changes occur on projects and that CCC was 
trying to do the best that it could. 
 
Commissioner Blount said as a contractor, you do exactly as listed on the 
documents and that the architects/engineers who design the projects are not 
perfect.  Commissioner Blount said contingencies are added because you realize 
items are going to be overlooked.  Commissioner Blount felt it wrong to chastise 
CCC too strongly for missing items from time to time. 
 
Commissioner Blount moved to approve the request as presented followed by a 
second from Commissioner Tadlock. 
 
Commissioner Sides said the Board was responsible for the taxpayers’ money 
and that his comments were not meant as a chastisement.  Commissioner Sides 
felt it his civic duty to ask questions. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain asked Mr. Watson if CCC would consider absorbing 
some of the costs for the smaller items in the future.  Mr. Watson responded that 
he would take this into consideration. 
 
The motion on the floor passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Watson then provided the Board with a brief update on the school projects. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR PARALLEL CONDITIONAL USE REZONING  
(PCUR) 04-05 
The public hearing for PCUR 04-05 was removed from the agenda. 
 
PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL COMMUNITY CHILD PROTECTION TEAM 
Sandra Wilkes and Tom Brewer from the Department of Social Services (DSS) 
presented the 2005 annual report for the Community Child Protection Team.   
 
Ms. Wilkes highlighted the membership of the team and explained that they had 
met quarterly and had reviewed a case during three of those meetings.  Ms. 
Wilkes said the cases were presented by DSS. 
 
Ms. Wilkes referred to the Community Protocol for Child Abuse Prevention and 
described the protocol document as a “working document” since 1997. 
 
Ms. Wilkes expressed appreciation for the steps the Board had taken to ensure a 
safe community and to ensure that staff had the necessary resources to perform 
their jobs. 

 6



Ms. Wilkes introduced Tom Brewer, DSS Program Administrator for Children’s 
Services and also Chairman for the Community Child Protection Team. 
 
Mr. Brewer reviewed the recommendations for the Board of Commissioners 
regarding support for the following: 

1. Continued funding for programs providing services through the Juvenile 
Crime Prevention Council; 

2. Continued approval for assessment and treatment of youth identified with 
mental health needs; 

3. Community involvement in addressing the problem of gang activity in 
Rowan County; 

4. Appointment of members to serve on Community Child Protection Team 
as appropriate. 

 
Mr. Brewer thanked the Board for its support. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain said DSS has a tough job and he thanked DSS for doing 
its job well. 
 
Commissioner Sides added that Mr. Brewer was doing a great job as Chair of the 
Community Child Protection Team.  Commissioner Sides continued by saying 
that some of the cases the Community Child Protection Team deals with are 
“extreme” and “heart-wrenching” and that they are doing a “a super job.”   
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR PROPOSED REVISIONS TO SOLID WASTE 
ORDINANCE 
Paul Canup from the Rowan County Environmental Services Department read 
the proposed text amendment changes, which had been incorporated since the 
last Board meeting. 
 
Commissioner Sides requested to change the text to state “by the written 
approval of the County Manager.” 
 
County Attorney Jay Dees suggested striking the word “from” in the last sentence 
and inserting the word “while.” 
 
Chairman Chamberlain opened the public hearing to entertain citizen input.  With 
no one wishing to address the Board, Chairman Chamberlain closed the public 
hearing. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell read the proposed text amendments with the suggested 
text changes as follows: 
“Discharging firearms or explosives on landfill property is prohibited unless 
authorized by the written approval of the County Manager.  This provision 
excludes law enforcement personnel while carrying out their sworn duties.” 
 

 7



 
Commissioner Sides moved, Commissioner Mitchell seconded and the vote to 
approve the text amendments to the Solid Waste Ordinance passed 
unanimously. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain called for a short break at 8:05 pm.   
 
Chairman Chamberlain reconvened the meeting at 8:15 pm. 
 
PRESENTATION OF JUNE 30, 2005 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
REPORT 
Sam Leder and Cindy Spencer from Potter & Company, P.A. presented the  
June 30, 2005 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Rowan County.   
Mr. Leder said this was his 8th year of working with Rowan County and he 
commended the Finance Department for doing an excellent job. 
 
Mr. Leder referred to page 2 of the handout and said his firm had issued an 
unqualified audit report, which is the highest level of assurance that a certified 
public accountant could issue.  Mr. Leder said the audit revealed no instances of 
non-compliance.   
 
Mr. Leder discussed the financial position of the County as of June 30, 2005 and 
praised the excellent management by the Commissioners and Staff. 
 
Mr. Leder highlighted the operating results on page 4 of the handout and he also 
reviewed the changes in the Enterprise Fund Types on page 5. 
 
Ms. Spencer reviewed the graphs in the handout. 
 
Mr. Leder recommended an internal audit position for the Finance Department.  
Mr. Leder explained that the internal auditor would randomly perform audits in 
the other departments, which he felt would be beneficial to Rowan County. 
 
Mr. Leder referred to the last letter of the handout that provided information 
regarding the firm’s responsibilities in performing the audit.  Mr. Leder said his 
staff encountered no issues and he again praised the Finance Department for 
doing a good job in providing information in a timely fashion. 
 
Commissioner Sides said he was in the process of reading the manual and that 
he understood the County was in a much better financial position due to efforts 
by the Commissioners and the Finance Department.   
 
Chairman Chamberlain concurred with Commissioner Sides and he also gave 
credit to the former County Manager, Tim Russell, for the financial status of the 
County. 
 

 8



Commissioner Mitchell moved, Commissioner Blount seconded and the vote to 
accept the audit passed unanimously. 
 
PRESENTATION OF 2005 FINANCIAL REPORT FOR REGISTER OF DEEDS 
OFFICE 
Bobbie Earnhardt, Register of Deeds, presented the 2005 Financial Report for 
the Register of Deeds Office. 
 
Ms. Earnhardt discussed the figures in the report and also said that military 
records are under “lock and key” due to federal law.  
 
Ms. Earnhardt said her department was progressively collecting more funds and 
that she was grateful for her staff of 11 employees, plus one senior citizen who 
worked 15 hours per week.   
 
Chairman Chamberlain said it was obvious that Ms. Earnhardt and her Staff was 
doing a good job.  
 
Commissioner Sides questioned the item fees and excise tax stamps and Ms. 
Earnhardt explained that the excise tax stamps were rates set by the state.   
 
Commissioner Sides questioned the price for copies and Ms. Earnhardt said 50 
cents had been the “standard” set by a previous Board in order to help pay for 
microfilm equipment installed by her predecessor.   
 
Commissioner Sides expressed concern with the word “profit” and said Rowan 
County was not a profit-making organization but rather a service organization.  
Commissioner Sides said he would like to see copies reduced from 50 cents to 5 
cents.  Commissioner Sides said he felt there were also exorbitant fees in other 
departments for tax maps, etc. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain thanked Ms. Earnhardt for her presentation. 
 
REVIEW OF S&ME DECIBEL READINGS @ QUARTER MIDGET 
RACETRACK 
Curtis Miller, President of the NC Quarter Midget Association (NCQMA) said the 
association had paid for sound testing as a result of a previous Commission 
meeting.  Mr. Miller reviewed the information in the agenda packet and discussed 
the results for test III.  Mr. Miller said that at no point were the cars above the 
decibel limit.   
 
Chairman Chamberlain commented that he had visited the facility and found it to 
be extremely clean.  Chairman Chamberlain said he could hardly hear the public 
announcement system and that based on what he had seen and heard, noise 
was a “non issue.”    
 

 9



In response to a query from Commissioner Tadlock, Mr. Miller said the track was 
promoted through word of mouth, a website and through the NCQMA. 
 
Commissioner Sides expressed appreciation for the NCQMA paying for the 
testing to satisfy complaints that had been raised. 
 
APPROVAL OF BID FOR PURCHASE OF (2) AMBULANCES 
Sandy Fisher of the Rowan County Finance Department presented the 
information concerning the ambulance bids.  Ms. Fisher said after due 
advertisement, 2 vendors had bid on the vehicles.  Ms. Fisher requested 
approval for the purchase of 2 ambulances from Southeastern Specialty Vehicles 
for a total cost of $195,806.00. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain questioned the procedure used to secure bids for the 
ambulances and Ms. Fisher said the advertisements are done in the local 
newspaper and that notice had been sent to major companies in North Carolina. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain requested that Staff put forth more effort to present the 
Board with more than 2 bids in the future.   
 
Commissioner Mitchell questioned the budgeted amount and Finance Director 
Leslie Heidrick responded $102,000 per vehicle. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved, Commissioner Mitchell seconded and the vote to 
approve the Resolution to award the contract for the purchase of the 2 vehicles 
passed unanimously. 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE USE OF IN REM FORECLOSURE  
County Attorney Jay Dees said the Resolution was needed to authorize the Tax 
Collector to use for In Rem foreclosure procedures.  Mr. Dees said the procedure 
was faster than the normal foreclosure procedures and that many of the steps 
could be handled through the Tax Collector’s Office as opposed to having an 
attorney involved.  Mr. Dees said the Tax Collector would have more control over 
how many foreclosures take place.   
 
Mr. Dees recommended that the Board adopt the Resolution. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock moved, Commissioner Blount seconded and the vote to 
approve the Resolution authorizing the use of In Rem Foreclosure pursuant to 
NCGS §105-375 passed unanimously. 
 
BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
Finance Director Leslie Heidrick reviewed the budget amendments in the agenda 
packets as follows: 

 10



1. To budget the 2006 Health Resources and Services Administration 
grant for Emergency Services.  Ms. Heidrick said EMS would use the 
grant funds to purchase 4 computers for use on calls. 

2. To adjust the County line items to the Rowan Partnership for Children 
– Child Health Consultant grant.  Ms. Heidrick said grant was budgeted 
in May and that the position had not been filled. 

 
Commissioner Sides expressed concern with the first budget amendment, saying 
the computers were very expensive.  Commissioner Sides said the County had 
recently had “one of those come up missing.”  Commissioner Sides asked how 
the computers are maintained and if they would be inventoried?  Ms. Heidrick 
said the Finance Department does spot checks and also that Fixed Asset 
Listings are sent out annually and verified by the Department Directors. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock questioned the insurance for these types of purchases 
and he asked Ms. Heidrick to follow up on this issue. 
 

3. Ms. Heidrick said the Parks Department had received a $20,000 
donation for a Children’s Photo Play Area.  Ms. Heidrick said there 
would be funds left over for the operation/maintenance of the 
equipment. 

 
Commissioner Sides moved, Commissioner Blount seconded and the vote to 
approve the budget amendments as presented passed unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
Chairman Chamberlain opened the Public Comment Period to entertain citizens’ 
comments. 
 

• Frank Burleyson of 5936 South Main Street said he had attended the first 
meeting in November pertaining to noise from his neighbor’s barking dogs.  
Mr. Burleyson said there were no nuisance laws in Rowan County to 
protect the citizens but that other towns did offer such laws.  Mr. Burleyson 
asked the Board for help. 

• Jeff Morris, 403 Crestwood Lane in Spencer, thanked the Board for what 
he felt might be in many cases was a thankless job.  Mr. Morris also 
thanked the Board for recognizing Sandra Wilkes and Tom Brewer.  Mr. 
Morris mentioned the community roundtable to take place at Mt. Zion 
Baptist Church and he praised Ms. Wilkes and Mr. Brewer for being “2 of 
the best in the state at what they do.”  

• George Stirewalt, Jr. of China Grove said he hoped the Board would have 
more of a “backbone approach” when dealing with the Board of Education 
and contractors in the future.  Mr. Stirewalt said he was self-employed and 
many times had to “eat” the extra costs when estimates “went over.”  Mr. 
Stirewalt finished by thanking the Board for doing a great job. 

 11



• Coy Elliott, of 505 West Ketchie Street in China Grove said he wished to 
clarify an issue Bobbie Earnhardt, Register of Deeds, had raised regarding 
the Military Privacy Act that was passed in 1974.  Mr. Elliott said the Act 
had prevented people from going to the courthouse and getting 
information regarding discharges, etc.  Mr. Elliott said that Ms. Earnhardt 
had allowed someone to obtain his information and he said there would be 
a lawsuit as a result of this.  Mr. Elliott said he had gone to Ms. Earnhardt 
and she had since corrected the issue.  Mr. Elliott referred to contracts 
and said if the project is not built according to the specs, “you shouldn’t be 
paid.” 

 
With no further citizens wishing to comment, Chairman Chamberlain closed the 
Public Comment Period. 
 
County Attorney Jay Dees said the question had been raised as to whether the 
matter of the Agreement for County Management Services fit within the 
personnel exception for Closed Session.  Mr. Dees recommended that the Board 
remove the matter from Closed Session in order to avoid any questions.  Mr. 
Dees said the issue was subject to interpretation and “should be considered 
before the fact and not after the fact.”   
  
Commissioner Sides moved to remove Item #5 from the current agenda and 
postpone the item for 2 weeks.  The motion died for lack of a second. 
 
Commissioner Blount moved, Commissioner Tadlock seconded and the vote to 
return Item #5 to the Open Session Agenda passed 4-1 with Commissioner 
Sides dissenting. 
 
CONTRACT FOR COUNTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
Commissioner Blount said Interim County Manager William Cowan had 
presented a contract for employment.  Commissioner Blount was of the opinion 
that the contract served the County well and at a slightly lower price.  
Commissioner Blount said he planned to support the contract. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell concurred with Commissioner Blount that the costs were 
slightly lower and that the contract was not to circumvent any process for placing 
a permanent manager in place.  Commissioner Mitchell felt the figures in the 
contract were in line for someone with Mr. Cowan’s experience.  Commissioner 
Mitchell said the County had little choice in paying the “going rate” for someone 
with the same experience as Mr. Cowan.  Commissioner Mitchell said if the 
Board wished to hire someone with less experience, it might want to consider 
hiring an assistant county manager and provide him with time to learn.  
Commissioner Mitchell presumed that the agreement would reinstate the 
restrictions that had been placed on the interim position regarding hiring/firing of 
employees.  Commissioner Mitchell continued to discuss the terms of the 
contract and he commended Mr. Cowan for having done an excellent job in the 

 12



interim period.  Commissioner Mitchell felt the continued stability was needed as 
the committee that had been appointed continued its search for a permanent 
county manager. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain said the committee intended to put out a request for 
applications around July.  Chairman Chamberlain said he wanted the Interim 
removed from Mr. Cowan’s title and that he wanted him to have the authority of a 
county manager.  Chairman Chamberlain stressed that Mr. Cowan reported to 
the Board. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock said he agreed with the comments of the other Board 
members and he said it was time to recognize Mr. Cowan as the Rowan County 
Manager.  Commissioner Tadlock said he had found Mr. Cowan to be polite, 
professional and accessible to the Board.  Commissioner Tadlock said the Board 
should endorse the contract. 
 
Commissioner Sides said he was one of the Board members involved in bringing 
Mr. Cowan to Rowan County but he had not voted for Mr. Cowan to be hired 
because of the money.   
 
Commissioner Sides then read a prepared statement in which he said he 
realized he stood alone with his fellow Commissioners when considering the 
proposed contract for the current Interim County Manager.  Commissioner Sides 
said he wished to make it clear that he did not want the issue to become a 
personal conflict between himself and Mr. Cowan.  Commissioner Sides 
anticipated the vote to approve the contract would be 4-1.  Commissioner Sides 
described Mr. Cowan as capable, talented and qualified for the position of Interim 
County Manager.  Commissioner Sides expressed gratitude for the acceptance 
of Mr. Cowan throughout county government and the community.   
 
Commissioner Sides continued to read his prepared statement that listed his 
objections to the employment contract as follows: 

• Opposed to a contract for any county employee 
• Disappointment in the amount of county time devoted to contract 
• Displeasure that contract is between a corporation and Rowan County 
• Contract and all of its underlying terms were primarily written by and for 

the benefit of the employee  
• Terms state Mr. Cowan is being hired as a temporary employee and 

Rowan County Personnel Policy prohibits temporary employees from 
receiving pay for holidays, vacation benefits, and sick leave.   
 

Commissioner Sides referred to the termination clause that binds the County 
regardless of whether the termination was with or without cause, and he also 
referred to the travel allowance of $600 per month, which he felt was excessive. 
 

 13



Commissioner Sides the entire contract was written for the benefit of the County 
Manager, not for the benefit of the citizens of Rowan County and that he felt it 
was not in the best interest of the Board to endorse the contract.  Commissioner 
Sides finished by saying he felt the Board should hire an employee and not a 
corporation. 
 
Commissioner Blount clarified an earlier comment and said that the committee 
that had been assigned to find a temporary County Manager was also assigned 
to create the process for hiring a permanent manager.  Commissioner Blount 
said Mr. Cowan had indicated to him that he did not plan to apply for the job and 
that it was an interim position “no matter what we call it.” 
 
Commissioner Blount moved, Commissioner Tadlock seconded and the vote to 
adopt the contract as presented passed 4-1 with Commissioner Sides dissenting.   
 
CLOSED SESSION FOR ATTORNEY/CLIENT AND ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT ISSUES 
Commissioner Mitchell moved to go into Executive Session at 9:45 pm pursuant 
to North Carolina General Statutes §143-318.11 for the purpose of: 
 

1. Discussion of a possible investigation of an employee 
2. Discussion of a matter relating to location or expansion of industries and 

possible economic development incentives. 
 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Tadlock and passed unanimously. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain called for a short break before entering Closed Session. 
 
The Board returned to Open Session at 10:50 pm and the following action was 
taken regarding Closed Session Item #1: 
 
Commissioner Mitchell moved to enter into an agreement with the firm of Parker 
Poe & Bernstein for the purposes of an investigation of a former employee, with 
expectations of a progress report in approximately 2 to 3 months, at a cost of 
approximately $10,000-$15,000.  The motion was followed by a second from 
Commissioner Sides and passed unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Blount moved to return to Executive Session at 10:55 pm.  The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Tadlock and passed on a 4-1 vote with 
Commissioner Sides dissenting. 
 
The Board returned to Open Session at 11:20 pm and the following action was 
taken regarding Closed Session Item #2: 
 
 
 

 14



 15

Commissioner Blount moved to advertise for a public hearing as soon as 
possible in order to receive comments concerning an incentive grant to this 
company for 75% for 5 years based on the information presented.  The motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Tadlock and passed 4-1 with Commissioner 
Sides dissenting. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Commissioner Blount moved, Commissioner Tadlock seconded and the vote to 
adjourn the meeting at 11:30 pm passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
      Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
      Carolyn Athey 
      Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


